

Castle House Great North Road Newark NG24 1BY

Tel: 01636 650000 www.newark-sherwooddc.gov.uk

Monday, 6 December 2021

Chairman: Councillor Mrs P Rainbow Vice-Chairman: Councillor Mrs S Saddington

To all Members of the Council:

MEETING:	Full Council	
DATE:	Tuesday, 14 December 2021 at 6.00 pm	
VENUE:	Civic Suite, Castle House, Great North Road, Newark, Nottinghamshire, NG24 1BY	
You are hereby requested to attend the above Meeting to be held at the time/place and on the date mentioned above for the purpose of transacting the business on the Agenda as overleaf.		
If you have any quer	ies please contact Nigel Hill Tel: 01636 655243 Email: Nigel.hill@newark- sherwooddc.gov.uk	

### AGENDA

### Page Nos.

- 1. Apologies for absence
- 2. Minutes from the Extraordinary Meeting held on 24 November 2021 6 - 9
- 3. Declarations of Interest by Members and Officers and as to the Party Whip
- 4. Declarations of any Intentions to Record the Meeting
- 5. Communications which the Chairman or the Chief Executive may wish to lay before the Council
- 6. Communications which the Leader of the Council and Committee Chairmen may wish to lay before the Council
- 7. Questions from Members of the Council and Public

In accordance with Rule No. 15.1 the following questions have been submitted to the Council from members of the public:

#### (i) Wendy Patterson

"On 11<sup>th</sup> November 2021, before and during the overnight occupation of the Library Garden by four protestors, instructions were issued by a council representative about what could and could not be brought on site to keep the protestors warm and comfortable. The gift of a chair from supporters was refused by the council representative on the grounds that nothing that can be used for 'habitation' is permitted. Similarly, a pillow was refused, sleeping bags and a pop-up tent. From where did these instructions come? Who decided what and what would not be allowed? It should be noted that the police officers were far more reasonable about what the protestors were allowed and when the council representative was not on duty, a swap of chairs for more comfortable ones was permitted and various previously forbidden items were brought to the protestors by the police."

#### (ii) **Darrell Pointing**

"11/11/21: A police officer from Mansfield spoke to the protestors who remained on site and said that 'this appears to be a matter of trespass only, which is not police business'. On what grounds did NSDC require the police to attend and what did they tell the police which led the force to mount a large and expensive operation with very many hours of police and community police officers time taken up with supervising a peaceful protest? Having been issued with the directive to leave the garden to avoid arrest, why were those protestors who remained not arrested? What laws were the protestors breaking by staying on the garden?"

#### (iii) Christine Stevenson

"11/11/21: With about 50 protestors on site and while designated PNGS spokespersons were led away to the rear of the garden to speak to a police officer - Sgt 2858 Matt Ward. A council worker/contracted by the council attacked the hedge between the garden and the public footpath on the London Road car park with a chainsaw. This took place with no warning, no cones, no health and safety measures at all, while members of the public and children were present on the path, on the grass and on the garden. Who authorised this dangerous and illegal action? Video and eye witness accounts available."

# (iv) Louise Smith

"On 11 November, metal fence panels were brought onto the garden and council workers/council contracted workers proceeded with speed to erect the panels. Their haste and lack of attention to detail was such that they commenced installing the fencing along the public footpath by the Library thereby blocking the fire exit from the Library. When this was pointed out, in the midst of a chaotic and brutal operation to seal off The Library Garden, the fencing was moved forward onto the grass and off the footpath.

Please could you address the following questions:

\* On whose authorisation was the attempt to block the fire exit from the Library?

\* What were the precise instructions given to council representatives/workers/ contracted workers about this operation to secure the 'compound' for an immediate start of work (despite police assurances to the protestors that the only work that would be carried out was the fencing)."

# (v) Pamela Ball

"12.11.21 - A person was escorted on to the library gardens (proposed car park annexe), to undertake a bat survey. Protestors were informed that this person would not provide a name, or credentials. A protestor read out the regulations for such a survey at this time of year, namely bat hibernation period.

A minimal ground survey of the four trees using binoculars was conducted, to establish likelihood of bat roosts. Ladders were then used to examine a bat box in the large sycamore tree. However, bat boxes are only used for summer roosting and should therefore not be used to establish the presence of bats.

After the preliminary bat survey, which is an incomplete survey, a phase 2 survey should be conducted between May-September.

St Georges Trust conducted a detailed bat ecological survey on 24 October 2021, on behalf of the campaign group, which was subsequently provided

to Newark and Sherwood District Council, establishing a high level of bat activity!

Very shortly after this preliminary survey, council contracted workers readied themselves at the rear of the garden to bring tree felling equipment onsite.

Did the bat surveyor actually submit a report with all the details, analysis and photos etc within minutes of his survey? Which officer at NSDC received the report, read it, checked it for completeness and validity and authorised the tree felling to go ahead? Had a licence from Natural England been applied for?

Over the past 50 years our wildlife has declined by 41%. Bats are a protected species and have lost much of their habitat. It is illegal to disturb or destroy bat roosts, the penalty for which is huge fines.

In these times of environmental awareness, did NSDC feel it appropriate to commit a wildlife crime?

Had Cllr Girling not arrived onsite to announce a uturn, this is exactly what would have happened!

Finally, if the tree felling had not been stopped minutes before it was due to start, what would have happened to the four remaining protestors? Would they have been forcibly removed by the police and on what grounds? If the protestors had been allowed to stay, what health and safety measures were in place to protect them?"

8. In accordance with Rule No. 10 to receive the presentation or the debating of any Petitions from Members of the Council (if any)

9.	Attend	ance at Meetings	10
10.	Politica	l Composition of the Council and Allocation of Seats on Committees	11 - 14
11.	Propos	als for New Governance Arrangements	15 - 28
12.	Propos	ed Schedule of Meetings 2022/23	29 - 34
13.	Treasu	ry Management 2021-22 Mid Year Report	35 - 49
14.	Appointment of External Auditors		50 - 54
15.	Notices of Motion (if any)		
16.	Minutes for Noting		
	(a)	Policy & Finance Committee - 25 November 2021	55 - 62

(b) Economic Development Committee - 17 November 2021 63 - 68

(c)	Homes & Communities Committee - 22 November 2021	69 - 75
(d)	Leisure & Environment Committee - 16 November 2021	76 - 82
(e)	General Purposes Committee - 11 November 2021	83 - 85
(f)	Licensing Committee - 11 November 2021	86 - 90
(g)	Trustee Board of the Gilstrap and William Edward Knight Charity - 19 October 2021	91 - 95
(h)	Audit & Accounts Committee - 1 December 2021	96 - 99
(i)	Planning Committee - 5 October 2021	100 - 108
(j)	Planning Committee - 2 November 2021	109 - 116
(k)	Councillors Commission - 2 December 2021	117 - 118

17. Exclusion of the Press and Public

To consider resolving that, under section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.